**Quick Reference Guide** 

Empowered by Innovation



# UC for Business Executive Desktop



005NEC-00QRGR

## **Revision History**

Document No.	Release Date	Change Description
005NEC-00QRGR	04/13/11	Initial release.

# **Table of Contents**

Introduction	1
Log Into and Out of Desktop	1
Log into Desktop	1
Log Out of Desktop	1
Change the PIN	2
The Desktop Interface	2
Phone Calls/Call History/Presence Windows	3
Desktop Call Functions	3
Make a Call	3
Answer a Call	4
Transfer a Call	4
Hold a Call	4
Park a Call	4
Forward All Calls	5
Phonebook Functions	5
Access the Phonebook	5
Search for a Contact	5
Add a New Contact	6
Edit Contact Details	6
Delete a Contact	6
Make/Transfer a Call Using the Phonebook	7
Presence	7
Presence Buttons	8
Presence Icons	8
Additional Functions Using the Presence Buttons	9
Set Presence Profile	10
Set an Estimated Time of Return (ETR)	11
Presence Status	11
Add a Presence Note	11
Add a New Presence Page	11
Rename a Presence Page	12
Delete a Presence Page	12
Add a Presence Button	12
Delete a Presence Button	13
Configure Presence Pages	13

Call Functions Using the Presence Buttons	13
Desk-to-Desk Chat	14
Chat Buttons	14
Make a Chat Call	15
End a Chat Call	15
Answer a Chat Call	
Transfer a Chat Call	15
Invite Additional Chat Participants	16
Private Chat	16
Chat Messages	16
Create and Use Templates	17
Additional Chat Functions	17

## Introduction

Executive Desktop enables an organization to use personal phone numbers to bypass the company operator and get callers to talk directly to employees, manage internal and external calls quickly and easily from their PC, see the availability of other staff members, and store notes about special callers. Executive Desktop provides simple and intuitive Graphical User Interface (GUI) administration of a user's voice messaging mailbox as well as easy access to all mailbox functions. This guide provides step-by-step instructions on how to use the Executive Desktop product.

## Log Into and Out of Desktop

## Log into Desktop

1. On the PC's Desktop, double-click the **Desktop** shortcut icon.

	NE	C
	UC for Busin	ness
	Desktop	
<u>L</u> ogin Name:	<u>R</u> emember me next time	<u>P</u> IN:
	ОК	Cancel <u>H</u> elp

- 2. In the **Login Name** field, type your full name (your name may automatically display after typing a few letters).
- 3. In the PIN field, type the PIN number (initially the PIN is 2222 until you change it to a unique number).
- 4. Optional: Click the **Remember Me Next Time** option to save this login information for the next time you start Desktop.

### Log Out of Desktop

- 1. Log out of the queues (if necessary).
- 2. Use any of the following methods to log out of Desktop:
  - Click the **Close** button (the red **X** in the upper right-side of Desktop).
  - From the **File** menu, select **Exit**.
  - Press Alt + F4.

#### **Change the PIN**



*Note:* The first time starting Desktop, the Desktop Setup wizard automatically runs and prompts to change the default PIN. Refer to the *User System Setup Quick Reference Guide* for details.

1. From the **File** menu, select **Change PIN**.

🔎 Change PIN	
Old PIN:	****
New PIN:	****
Verify New PIN:	****
OK Car	ncel <u>H</u> elp

- 2. In the Old PIN field, type the old PIN (the default PIN is 2222 until a new PIN is created).
- 3. In the **New PIN** field, type the new PIN.
- 4. In the **Verify New PIN** field, again type the new PIN.



*Note:* Remember to enter the new PIN the next time you open Desktop.

## **The Desktop Interface**

		Main Menu			
Telephone	Desktop - Bell				
Control		loice <u>Bessaging</u> <u>Vew</u> <u>Help</u>		2:43:07 p.m.	
Toolbar	Contact: Ben Ada Presence:	Active C	Call		
1	Phone Calls	Active Calls	:	Phonebook 2	
Voice	Call History	Line State Caller Info Drigin Date Time Duration Queue		b	
Messaging	Presence	4008 Connected Ben Adams on 4003 Outbound 9/12/2008 2:43:06 p.m. 0:01		Selle Peters	
Toolbar	Presence Web Browser			Ben Adams Bil Rogers	
	Web browser Fax	Phone Calls	2	🕥 Bobby Zimmerman	
	· · · · · · · · ·	Ben Adams [4003]		Craig Benson	
	🖃 Email	🐔 Hangup 🧚 Hold 😰 Park 🛷 Transfer 🗌 Go Mobile 🚳 Forward All	ŧ	🕥 Jim Butler	
		Outbound Call     Function     Pane     Duration:	0:01	Luis Bonner     Lois Bonner     Peter Bell	7
Functions		Ben Adams at Infinite Solutions on 4003		Phonebook	2
List				Panel	
					-
				Ben Adams	
				Company: Infinite Soluti	
				Forwarded to Maibox	
				習 Due back: 4:45 pm	
				≫ 4003	
				1 +64 (9) 8876544 +64 (21) 2345	
Status Ba	ar			U TOT (21) 2010	
	🙎 <in offic<="" td="" the=""><td>ce&gt; Schedule: On 🕲 Free Until: 5:30 pm 🦼 dype presence note here&gt;</td><td>1 New M</td><td>lessage</td><td></td></in>	ce> Schedule: On 🕲 Free Until: 5:30 pm 🦼 dype presence note here>	1 New M	lessage	

## Phone Calls/Call History/Presence Windows

one Calls	Phone (	s		2
	🙆 Ben	Jams [4003]		
	🔏 Han	p 😵 Hold 🔋 Park. 🛷 Transfer 🐐 Go Mobile 🚳 Forward All		ŧø
		ect Call dams from Infinite Solutions on 4003	Duration:	0:10
Call Hist	ory Ca	listory		
	Filt	s: Media: 🔊 🏈 河 🖃 📝 Messages: 🌒 💞 Calls	: 📍 🖹 🔁 🗖	
	Lin	Caller/Called Phone/Address Date	Time State Duration	
		day		
	ě	4008 Operator Queue Queue 4503 10/12/2008	8 2:43:02 p.m. 📑 Outbound 0:00	
	i de	4008 Joan Robertson 4027 10/12/2008	8 2:42:26 p.m. 📑 Outbound 0:00	
	E.	4008 Ben Adams 4003 10/12/2008	8 2:42:17 p.m. 📑 Outbound 0:00	
	1	Voice Ben Adams 4003 10/12/2008	8 2:41:29 p.m. 🖹 Unread	
	ě.	4008 Ben Adams 4003 10/12/2008	8 2:41:26 p.m. 🣍 Missed 0:00	
3	Presence	Presence		
· ·		🏈 Infinite Solutions 🧝 MY IM		
		S 4 4 S 4 S 4 S 4 S 4 S 4 S 4 S 4 S 4 S		: 🐠
	4	Belle P Ben A Bill R Dave J David		
		Innovations C Jack J Joan R Joanna H John		r Que
		Other IVR Tra Sales (FR) Q Sales Q Sally C Sue 3	3 Support Q Trevor C	

## **Desktop Call Functions**

#### Make a Call



*Note:* Calls can also be made using the Phonebook; see "Make/Transfer a Call Using the Phonebook" on page 7.

- Use any of the following methods to make a call:
  - Click the Phonebook icon, select the preferred contact name/number, and then click the Call button.
  - Use the Presence button by either clicking the:
    - Preferred contact's Presence button to call the contact's default number.
    - Phone Status icon on the contact's Presence button, and then click the preferred number.
  - If the contact is in the Phonebook, use the **Contact** field.
    - a. In the **Contact** field, start typing the contact's name.
    - b. When the system displays the contact's phone number and name, press **Enter** (or press **F4** or click the **Make a New Call** icon). A blue border is also placed around the contact's Presence button.

## Answer a Call

- > Use any of the following methods to answer a call:
  - Pick up the phone's receiver, or press the phone's **Speaker** button.
    - Use Desktop to immediately use the speaker or hands-free mode by:
      - Pressing Enter (or F2).
      - Clicking **Answer this Call** in the Phone Calls window.
      - From the **Call** menu, select the **Answer**.



## **Transfer a Call**



*Note:* Calls can also be transferred using the Phonebook; see "Make/Transfer a Call Using the Phonebook" on page 7.

- > Use either of the following methods to transfer a call:
  - In the Active Calls window, right-click the call, select **Transfer Call**, and then select the call's destination.
  - In the Phone Calls window, click the **Transfer** icon and then select the call's destination.



Note: Transfer destinations can be manually entered or selected from the Phonebook.

## Hold a Call

When a caller is on hold:

- No other telephone functions can be performed.
- On-hold music plays for the caller.
- The call displays in the Active Calls window.
- > Use either of the following methods to place a call on hold:
  - In the Active Calls window, right-click the call and then select Hold Call.
  - In the Phone Calls window, click the Hold icon.

## Park a Call

When a call is parked:

- Other telephone functions can be performed, such as making or receiving other calls.
- On-hold music plays for the caller.
- The call displays in the Active Calls window.
- Use either of the following methods to place a call on hold:
  - In the Active Calls window, right-click the call and then select Park Call.
  - In the Phone Calls window, click the **Park** icon.

## **Forward All Calls**

All calls can be forwarded to either a selected number or your mailbox.

- 1. Use any of the following methods to forward all calls:
  - Press Ctrl+F.
    - Click the Forward All icon.
    - From the **Call** menu, select **Forward All Calls**.
- 2. Either click the:
  - **Mailbox** option to forward calls to your mailbox.
  - Phone option and select a telephone number destination to forward calls to that number.
- 3. Click OK.

## **Phonebook Functions**

## **Access the Phonebook**

- > Use any of the following methods to open the Phonebook:
  - Click the **Phonebook** icon.
  - Press Ctrl+P.
  - From the **Call** menu, select **Phonebook**.

## **Search for a Contact**

1. Optional: To refine the search, select a specific search directory..



2. In the **Look for** field, type the contact's name.



3. In the Found Contacts section, select the contact's name to display the associated contact numbers.

## Add a New Contact

- 1. Click the **Phonebook** icon, and then select the directory that the new contact is to be in from the list of directories.
- 2. In the Found Contacts section, click the Add a New Name (+) icon.
- 3. Enter the contact's details, and then click **OK**.
- 4. In the Found Contacts section, select the new contact.
- 5. In the Numbers/Addresses section, click the Add a New Number icon.
- 6. From the **Type** menu, select the number type.
- 7. Enter the other required details, such as country code, area code, and number. The number must contain a country code, area code, and the actual number; otherwise it cannot be dialled from Desktop.



Note: For New Zealand area codes, the leading 0 is not required.

- 8. Click OK.
- 9. To add additional contact numbers, repeat steps 5 though 8.

## **Edit Contact Details**

- 1. Click the **Phonebook** icon, and then either:
  - Select either the contact name or number, and then click the **Configure this Name/Number** icon.
  - Right-click either the contact name or number, and then select Properties.
- 2. Update the contact's information, and then click **OK**.

## **Delete a Contact**

- 1. Click the **Phonebook** icon, and then either:
  - Select either the contact name or number, and then click the **Delete this Name/Number** (-) icon.
  - Right-click either the contact name or number, and then select **Delete**.
- 2. When prompted to confirm the deletion, click **Yes**.

## Make/Transfer a Call Using the Phonebook

1. Click the **Phonebook** icon.



- 2. In the **Found Contacts** section, click the preferred contact.
- 3. In the Numbers/Addresses section, select the preferred contact's number.
- 4. Click the **Call** button.



Note: For transfers, stay on the line until the party picks up.

## **Presence**

Presence buttons provide real-time visual information on the whereabouts and availability of staff. If an employee is out of the office or in a meeting, the system displays the **Due Back** time. When an employee is away from the desk or on a call, you can request an automatic notification alert for when the employee is available. Use the Presence buttons to call staff. Presence buttons can be grouped and arranged on separate pages.

Presence											?
🏈 Channel Tea	am 🏈 US: Offic	e 🦻 Support T	eam 🏈 NZ: Of	fice 🍠 UK: Offi	ice 🏈 MEL: OI	fice 🏈 SYD: O	ffice				
D+# 🐶	🔊 🙎 🐶	🙆 🔩 😽	🔽 🔩 🐖	🔊 🥾 😽	🔊 🥾 🍕	🎑 + 🛪   🌵	3	🔊 <b>+ 🔝</b> 🐶	🔊 🐛 🐶	🔊 <b>+  🐶</b>	^
Aimee Z	Andrew F	Anthony G	Basman H	Beverly B	Bill C	Brady C	Brady C1	Brian H	Bryan M	Bryce F	
D+ 🚨 🛛 🐖	0+11 V	🙆 💄 🐶	D+ 🚨 🛛 🖗	0	>> × 9	🖗 🥾 🍯	🔊 <b>• </b> 😽	🔊 + 🛪 🛛 🖗	🔊 🥾 🐶	🔊 🔩 🌵	
Cathy P	Christian A	Christopher M	Chuck C	Conference R	Dan H	David C	David W	Dorian S	Ed C	Emily H	
🔊 🔥 🐶	<b>*</b>	🔽 🍇 🐖		🔊 🥾 🐶	🔼 🍇 🐖	🇌 🗰 🖗	1	>+11 ·	D+ 🚨 📫	🞑 🍇 🌵	
Ernie W	Escalations Q	Evan K	GDR H	Henk E	Hoang V	INUCB48100 Q	James B	Jason G	Jason K	Jim C	
🔊 🔔 🌵	> <b>!!</b> 4	0+11 W	🔊 🥾 🐖	D+ 🌡 🕴		<b>⊘</b> +x ₩	1	2 🛃 🐖	D+ 🚨 📫	2 🍇 🐖	
Joe D	John D	John P	Johnna E	Jon C	Josh Ca	l Josh Lindstedt or	6206 H	Kevin Ø	KINGY Y	Liliana D	
🔊 🙎 🌵	🇌 🦘 🌵	D+11 4	🚺 + 🤹 🐶	8 M 9	8	Forwarded to Ma	ailbox 👘 🌵	14 L 4	DI S	Ø 9	
Mandana M	Marketing Q	Michelle C	Mike D	Miles V	New A	a contraction of the second		Rich E	Samuel W	Sandi M	
<b>•</b>	🙆 🍇 🧐	🔊 🥾 🐶	D+11 4	D+11 4	<b>⊘</b> ♦ <b>⋊</b> ○	Unknown	(18/2011 8:00 am	[GP11 = +] (3/10/20		D 🗙 🧐	
Sergio M	Steve C	Sylvia R	Tim W	Tom F	Tom G	Tomas L	LICB Backline O	USA Frontline Q	USA SEHD Q	William B	
Dergio In		Syman			Toma	Tomase	oco odcramo q	Contraction of	CONT DELIDE Q	willdin b	~

## **Presence Buttons**

The following are two types of Presence buttons:

	<b>Ø</b>		
Tom F	James B		
	🕢 🛃 🐗		
Dorian S	Wayne M		

**External** = Telephone numbers outside the office.

Internal = Extension numbers in the office. Use the Internal Presence buttons to:
 View the user's extension status by viewing the icons and the status tooltip.

• Perform advanced call functions for an extension by right-clicking the icon. A user's name displays in yellow text if logged into queues as an agent.

## **Presence Icons**

Icon	Description
Phone	e Call Types
3	(Gray) Extension is idle.
	(Various colors) Extension is ringing or offering.
6	(Various colors) Extension is busy (on the phone).
۵ 🖌	Extension is forwarded to another number (internal or external).
<b>8</b>	Forwarded to voicemail.
6	(Green) Inbound non-queue call.
6	(Pink) Outbound non-queue call.
6	(Yellow) Inbound queue call (if queuing is installed).
<b>~</b>	(Blue) Outbound queue call (if queuing is installed).
Profile	es
2	In the office.
	In a meeting.
1	Out of the office.
×	On vacation.
<u></u>	(Gray Head) Agent is logged into the queues.
Voice	mail Status
<b>P</b>	No messages.
s.	One or more standard messages.
4	One or more urgent messages.

## **Additional Functions Using the Presence Buttons**

#### **Display Additional Contact Numbers**

1. In the Active Calls window, click the Phone Status icon to display additional contact numbers.



2. From the menu, select the number to call.

#### **Right-Click a Presence Button for Additional Menu Actions**

> Right-click a Presence button, and then select the preferred action from the menu.



*Note:* The actual options available depend on the type of PBX being used, how the system is set up, and the enabled security permissions. Certain options are also only visible when there is an active call on the extension.



lcon	Name	Description
<i>~</i> ,	Call User on Extension	Initiates a call to the user on the designated telephone number.
	Supervised Transfer to User	Transfers the Active Call to the user's extension, and talk to the user before completing the transfer.
*/	Blind Transfer to User	Transfers the active call to the user's extension.
	Transfer Call	Transfers the active call to the user's extension.
e	Park for User	Holds the active call at the user's extension; the user can then retrieve the call.
	Advanced Park	Parks the active call and pages the user.
9	Notify Me when User is Back	A ScreenPop informs when the user is in the office and available to take the call.
<b>8</b>	Forward All Calls	Forwards all calls to a specified internal or external number.
	Leave a Voice Message	Record a voice message for the recipient.
	Transfer to Mailbox	Transfers the active call to the user's voicemail.
۵	Ask User to Call Me Back	The user receives a ScreenPop callback request upon return.
	Record Conversation to Mailbox	The conversation saves to the current user's mailbox (if installed).

lcon	Name	Description		
	Send Message to Digital Phone	Sends a short text message to the LCD screen of the user's digital phone.		
	Select Presence Profile	Changes the user's Presence profile.		
	Rename	Renames the Presence button.		
	Delete	Deletes the Presence button.		
	View As	Changes the Presence buttons' appearance.		

#### **Set Presence Profile**

- > Use either of the following methods to select a preferred profile:
  - The Presence list.
  - Right-click a Presence button, and then select Select Presence Profile.



## Set an Estimated Time of Return (ETR)

An Estimated Time of Return (ETR) can be set for the Presence profiles used when you are not available.

1. Select a profile, and then click the calendar function.



2. Select the date of return.



*Note:* Unless the ETR is set as mandatory in the system settings, an ETR can be skipped by clicking the **Skip ETR** button.

- 3. Select the approximate time of return using the standard times in the left window, or by setting the time using the clock field's up and down arrows.
- 4. Click OK to save the ETR and activate the selected Presence Profile.

#### **Presence Status**

Your Presence status is indicated in the Status Bar. The status information can be viewed by other users via your Presence button or from the Phonebook.



#### **Add a Presence Note**

This section describes how to add a personal Presence note to your Status Bar with additional information about activities and availability to coworkers.

- 1. In the Status Bar, click the Presence note text <type Presence note here>.
- 2. Type the information, and then press **Enter**. This Presence note remains until it is cleared or a new note is created.

#### Add a New Presence Page

Use the Add Presence Page wizard to create either Standard or Dynamic Presence pages:

- Dynamic = Automatically lists the contacts for a company or department.
- **Standard** = Manually add and arrange the contacts.



Note: Only users with System Administrator rights can add or edit Global Presence pages.

- 1. Use either of the following methods to start the Add Presence Page wizard:
  - From the **File** menu, select **Add a New Presence Page**.
  - Right-click in the Presence window, and then select Add a New Presence Page.
- 2. Click Create Personal Presence Page (only administrators can create global pages), and then click Next.
- 3. Select the type of page to be created. Click either:
  - Standard Page to manually add and arrange Presence buttons. If chosen, proceed to the next step.
  - Automatic Page = Automatically adds and updates Presence buttons for the selected company/ department. If chosen, complete the following substeps.
    - a. Select a company from the listed companies, and then click Next.
    - b. Optional: Select List Only Contacts for the Selected Departments, and then click Next.



*Note:* This step only displays if departments have been defined.

- c. Click the department(s) to display if the department option was selected in the previous step, and then click **Next**.
- d. Optional: Click the **Create Additional Pages** option, enter the number of buttons per page, and then click **Next**. This option defines a maximum number of Presence buttons per page and automatically creates an additional page when this maximum is reached.
- 4. Type a name for the Presence page, and then click Next.
- 5. Verify the settings and click **Finish** to create the Presence Page.

#### **Rename a Presence Page**

- 1. Use either of the following methods to rename a Presence page:
  - From the File menu, select Rename this Page.
  - Right-click in the Presence page, and then select Rename this Page.
- 2. Type the new name for the page, and then click **OK**.

#### **Delete a Presence Page**

- 1. Open the page to delete.
- 2. Right-click in any blank area, and then select **Delete this Page**.
- 3. When prompted to confirm the deletion, click Yes.

#### Add a Presence Button

- 1. Right-click in the Presence page, and then select **Add a Presence Button**.
- 2. Select either the contact name or the contact number (or drag a contact name or number from the Phonebook to the Presence page), and then click **OK**.

## **Delete a Presence Button**

> Right-click a Presence button, and then select **Delete**.



## **Configure Presence Pages**

1. Right-click the Presence page, and then select Page Properties.

<ul> <li>Auto-Arrange Presence Buttons</li> <li>View as</li> <li>Delete Page</li> <li>Page Properties</li> <li>Malbourne</li> <li>USA</li> <li>UK</li> <li>Sudes</li> <li>Sydney</li> <li>Melbourne</li> <li>Sydney</li> <li>Melbourne</li> <li>Melbie</li> </ul>	ges         Page Properties         Page Name:         Sales         View Style:         Large Buttons         Page Lype:         Standard Presence Page         Auto-arrange buttons         Button Arrangement <ul> <li>Rows</li> <li>Columns</li> </ul>	<ul> <li></li> <li></li> </ul>
--	--	--------------------------------

- 2. Set up the required options for the selected Presence page.
- 3. Click OK.

## **Call Functions Using the Presence Buttons**

For details on call functions using the Presence buttons, see "Display Additional Contact Numbers" on page 9.

## **Desk-to-Desk Chat**

Use Desk-to-Desk chat to have a conversation in real time with other internal users by typing text.

> Click the **Chat** tab to open the Chat window.

Oliver Stanley 11:27 am H Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen 11:29 am Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am	Toolbar       Diver Stanley Trevor Chen         Oliver Stanley Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday.       11:27 am Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday.         Trevor Chen       11:29 am Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks       11:29 am	Tree Session Chat Messages Oliver Stanley	
Toolbar       Iteror Chen         Oliver Stanley       11:27 am         Hi       Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday.         Trevor Chen       11:29 am         Pleasure. Hope it helped       Dialogue and Message Entry         Oliver Stanley       11:30 am	Toolbar       Itervor Chen         Oliver Stanley       11:27 am         H       Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday.         Trevor Chen       11:29 am         Pleasure. Hope it helped       11:29 am         Dialogue and       Message Entry         all good       11:30 am	💪 End Conversation 🏈 Transfer 🕢 Invite 🖻 Copy 🛃 Save Conve	
Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley 11:29 am 11:29 am 11:29 am 11:29 am 11:30 am	Oliver Stanley 11:27 am Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen 11:29 am Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley all good 11:30 am	Toolbar	
Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley 11:29 am Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am	Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure, Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley all good 11:29 am Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am		Chat Par
Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley 11:29 am 11:29 am 11:29 am 11:29 am 11:30 am	Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure, Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley all good 11:29 am Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am		
Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley 11:29 am Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am	Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure, Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley all good 11:29 am Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am		
Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley 11:29 am Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am	Hi Thank you for the information you gave me yesterday. Trevor Chen Pleasure, Hope it helped Thanks Oliver Stanley all good 11:29 am Dialogue and Message Entry 11:30 am	Officer Abarbari	11/27-00
Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks     Dialogue and Message Entry       Oliver Stanley     11:30 am	Pleasure. Hope it helped Thanks Dialogue and Message Entry all good 11:30 am	Hi	11:27 am
Oliver Stanley Message Entry 11:30 am	Oliver Stanley all good 11:30 am	Trevor Chen	
		Pleasure. Hope it helped	

## **Chat Buttons**

Button	Description
🐤 Initiate Chat	Starts a new chat call to either a selected chat user or chat queue.
💪 End Conversation	Ends the current chat call.
🎯 Transfer	Transfers the current chat call to either a selected chat user or chat queue.
🧼 Invite	Invites one or more chat users to join the current chat call. Invitees must accept the invite to join.
🗈 Сору	Select the chat window, and then click the <b>Copy</b> button to copy the chat window to the clipboard.
🛃 Save Conversation	Saves a transcript of the chat conversation in a text format to a specified disk directory.
3 Send Text	Transmits the typed text. Alternatively, press the Enter key.
Close	Closes the current chat window.
🏷 Chat Templates	Adds, edits, or deletes standard chat phrases or commonly used URL links
<b>T</b> -	A list of saved text phrase. When selected, the phrase is sent directly to the other chat parties.
URL -	A list of saved URLs. When selected, the URL is sent as a link directly to the other chat parties.
🚇 Send Current URL	Pushes the current Desktop browser URL to the chat recipients.
🧔 Trace URL	Automatically sends a series of web page URLs while navigating using the Desktop web browser—toggles this feature on and off.

Button	Description
🤗 Trevor Chen	Chat conversation-when pink, an outbound chat conversation.
🥏 Trevor Chen	Chat conversation—when green, an inbound chat conversation.

#### Make a Chat Call

- 1. Click Initiate Chat to start a new chat call.
- 2. Click either Chat User or Chat Queue, and then select the specific entry from the list.
- 3. Click the **Chat** button in the window, and a new conversation window opens.
- 4. In the message text field, type the message and then click **Send Text** (or press the **Enter** key) to transmit the typed text. An outbound chat call shows as waiting in the Active Calls window until the recipient answers the call.

## End a Chat Call

- 1. Click End Conversation.
- 2. Optionally, click **Save Conversation** to save a transcript of the chat conversation in a text format to a specified disk directory.
- 3. Click the **Close** button to close the conversation window.

## **Answer a Chat Call**

- 1. When a new chat call message displays, either click:
  - Accept to answer the chat call, and then navigate to the Chat window by clicking the Chat tab.
  - Show Call to display the Chat window, and then click Accept.

🦻 Incoming Chat Call	P×
Trevor Chen	
Good morning	
Accept Show Call	

2. In the message text field, type the reply message and then click **Send Text** (or press the **Enter** key) to transmit the typed text.

## **Transfer a Chat Call**

- 1. Click **Transfer** to transfer the current chat call.
- 2. From the list, select a chat user or queue.
- Optionally, click the Include Current Chat Conversation option to give the recipient access to the prior dialogue.
- 4. Click Transfer to complete the call transfer.

## **Invite Additional Chat Participants**

- 1. Click the **Invite** icon.
- 2. Select one or more chat users to join the current chat call.
- 3. Optional: Click the Include Current Chat Conversation option to give the invitees access to the prior dialogue.
- 4. Click the Invite icon to send the invitations. Invitees must accept the invite to join.

## **Private Chat**

When there are three or more chat participants, you can have a private chat with a selected participant.

1. Right-click the participant's name.

	E Trevor Chen Trevor Collin Paul Erin (invited)
Private Chat to Ale > Nudge Alex Wilson.	x Wilson
Nudge with Text Contact Properties	

2. From the menu, select Private Chat to [name]. A new chat window opens to enable the private chat session.

## **Chat Messages**

The Chat Messages feature provides an organized listing of chat conversations and chat users. Select the required category and then use the right-click menu to access the available functions for the selected chat session or user.

**Help:** For more details on Chat Messages and additional functions and configuration settings, refer to the online help.

🦻 Chat Messages							
🐤 Initiate Chat 🌗 🐤 Chat Temp	lates						2
E- Chat	Show messages from: Yester	day   7 days   30 d	days   All availa	ble			
My Active Chats	Participants	Date	Time	Туре	Duration	Queue	
Chat History	💮 Lee Stern	9/06/2010	9:50:06 a.m.	Outbound	2:59		
Child Oscis	💮 Lee Stern	9/06/2010	11:23:42 a	Answered	2:15		
	Cliver Stanley	9/06/2010	11:27:58 a	Answered	2:42		

## **Create and Use Templates**

Use the Desktop Agent templates to save and use commonly-used phrases and URLs when chatting.

#### **Create Template**

- 1. Click the Chat Templates icon.
- 2. Click either the Phrases or Links tab in the Templates window. The existing entries that display can be edited or deleted.
- 3. Click Add and enter a suitable label and the associated text or URL.
- 4. Click OK.

#### **Use Template**

- 1. Click the down arrow for either of the following icons:
  - **Chat Templates**
  - URL
- 2. Select the required item from the menu.

The text phrase is automatically sent to the other chat parties. The URL is pushed to the other chat parties.



Note: When a URL is received in:

- Desktop, the URL shows as an active link and the built-in Web Browser automatically opens the web page.
- Executive Insight, the URL shows as an active link.

#### **Additional Chat Functions**

 $\triangleright$ Refer to the online help for additional less-frequently used functions and configuration settings.

Empowered by Innovation



Corporate Headquarters (Japan) Oceania (Australia) NEC Corporation www.nec.com

NEC Australia Pty Ltd. www.nec.com.au

North America (USA) NEC Corporation of America NEC Corporation www.necam.com

Asia www.nec.com Europe (EMEA) **NEC Unified Solutions** www.nec-unified.com

About NEC Corporation of America: Headquartered in Irving, Texas, NEC Corporation of America is a leading provider of innovative IT, network, and communications products and solutions for service carriers, and Fortune 1000 and SMB businesses across multiple vertical industries, including Healthcare, Government, Education, and Hospitality. NEC Corporation of America delivers one of the industry's broadest portfolios of technology solutions and professional services, including unified communications, wireless, voice and data, managed services, server and storage infrastructure, optical network systems, microwave radio communications, and biometric security. NEC Corporation of America as a wholly-owned subsidiary of NEC Corporation, a global technology leader with operations in 30 countries and more than \$38.5 billion in revenues. For more information, please visit www.neca

© 2011 NEC Corporation. All rights reserved. NEC, the NEC logo, and UNIVERGE are trademarks or registered trademarks of NEC Corporation that may be registered in Japan and other jurisdictions. All trademarks identified with ® or M are registered trademarks or trademarks respectively. Models may vary for each country. Please refer to your local NEC representatives for further details